
   

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
November 2, 2015 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, November 2, 2015 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
PRESENTATIONS / COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
a. Recognition of Stayton Community Food Bank Manager Edna Rickman by Mayor Porter 
b. Donation to Park Fund from Car Show Committee by Russ Strohmeyer 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. October 5, 2015 City Council Minutes 
b. OLCC Liquor License “New Outlet” Application Limited On-Premises Sales – Moxieberry 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 

In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which 
are routine in nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any 
item placed on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the 
time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion 
to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll 
the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the 
consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more 
detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review 
these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public 
Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa 
Angelo at (503) 769-3425.



   

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
November 2, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Vacation of Alleys between N. Alder and N. Birch, south of W. Ida Street 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Questions from Council 
c. Proponents’ Testimony 
d. Opponents’ Testimony 
e. General Testimony 
f. Questions from Public 
g. Questions from Council 
h. Staff Summary 
i. Close of Hearing 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
Ordinance No. 988, Amending SMC Title 5.12 Relating to the Location of   Action 
Marijuana Facilities and Declaring an Emergency 
a. Staff Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 990, Vacating of Alleys       Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Community Grants          Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 

 
Ordinance No. 986, SCTC Franchise Agreement Renewal     Action 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 991, Wave Franchise Agreement Renewal     Action 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. September 2015 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens       Informational 
a. September 2015 Statistical Report 
  
 



   

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
November 2, 2015 

Public Works Director’s Report       Informational 
a. September 2015 Operating Report 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. September 2015 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Katinka Bryk      Informational 
a. September 2015 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR      
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR      
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – November 16, 2015 
a. Emergency Plan 
b. Gas Tax 
c. North Santiam Arts Commission – Mike Reding 
 
ADJOURN 



   

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
November 2, 2015 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

NOVEMBER 2015 
Monday November 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday November 3 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday November 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Tuesday November 10 Police Advisory Board 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Wednesday November 11 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERANS DAY 
Friday November 13 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday November 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday November 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Thursday November 26 
CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING 

Friday November 27 
Monday November 30 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

DECEMBER 2015 
Tuesday December 1 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday December 7 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday December 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday December 11 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday December 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday December 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Friday December 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS DAY 

Monday December 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JANUARY 2016 
Monday January 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday January 5 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday January 8 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday January 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday January 18 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING DAY 
Tuesday January 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday January 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday January 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

FEBRUARY 2016 
Monday February 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 2 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday February 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday February 12 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday February 15 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY 
Tuesday February 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday February 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 5 
October 6, 2015 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

October 5, 2015 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  9:11 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Katinka Bryk, Library Director 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Brian Quigley Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
 Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 David Rhoten, City Attorney (excused) 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
None 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Rese Bourdeau 
 
 
 
b. Gerry Flowers 

 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Spencer Gould 
 
 
 
d. Paul Hames 

 
 
 

e. Shellie Clokey 
 

 
Ms. Bourdeau gave an update on the chalk wall 
project. Councilor Glidewell commended the 
group putting this project together.  
 
Mr. Flowers spoke about the proposed location of 
the marijuana dispensary in the Santiam Station 
development. Opposed to recreational marijuana 
being sold in this location, and asked if there is a 
way to prohibit recreational from being sold in this 
location. 
 
Mr. Gould spoke in opposition of a proposed 
marijuana dispensary being located in the Santiam 
Station development.  
  
Mr. Hames also spoke in opposition of a proposed 
marijuana dispensary located in the Santiam 
Station development.  
 
Ms. Clokey owns the daycare center in the Santiam 
Station development. She is opposed to the 
proposed marijuana dispensary being opened in 
the vicinity of her daycare.  



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 5 
October 6, 2015 

Consent Agenda 
a. September 21, 2015 City Council Minutes 

 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to approve the Consent Agenda 
as modified. Motion passed 5:0. 

Public Hearing 
Vacation of Alleyways 
 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

 
 

b. Questions from Council 
 
 
 

c. Proponents’ Testimony 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

d. Opponents’ Testimony 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The hearing was opened at 7:27 p.m. 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report included 
in the Council packet.  
 
Councilor Glidewell inquired about alleys proposed 
for vacation that had not received public 
testimony at the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Alan Kingsley spoke in favor of vacating the alley 
between S. Douglas and S. Evergreen, running 
south from Water. 
 
Janet Krieger spoke in favor of vacating the alley 
between N. Second and N. Fourth, running from 
Fir to Cedar. 
 
Tadd Humphreys spoke in favor of vacating the 
alley between N. Alder and N. Birch, running from 
Ida to High. 
 
Kathy Kaczynski spoke in favor of vacating the alley 
between N. Sixth and N. Seventh, running from 
Virginia to Washington. 
 
Denise Orr requested vacation of an alley not on 
the list. It is located between N Birch and N Alder, 
on the south side of W Ida Street. 
 
Robin Smith, who is purchasing the home at 492 E. 
Hollister, spoke in favor of vacating the alley 
between N. Fourth and N. Fifth, running from 
Robidoux to Hollister. 
 
Sandy Gottfried requested the alley between N. 
Sixth and N. Seventh, running from Burnett to 
Virginia not be vacated because this is their only 
access to garage.  
 
Larry Kraemer spoke in opposition of vacating the 
alleyway between N. First and N. Second, running 
from Fir to Cedar because this is their only access 
to garage. 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 5 
October 6, 2015 

 
e. General Testimony 

 
 

f. Questions from the Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
g. Questions from the Council 
 
 
 
 
 
h. Staff Summary 

 
 
 
 

i. Close of Hearing 
 

j. Council Deliberation 
 
 
 
 
 
 

k. Council Decision 

 
Gerry Flowers spoke about potential issues with 
storm water when an alley is vacated.  
 
Lynette Huie inquired about the process to move 
forward with a partial vacation of an alley if it is 
not already included in this process. Mr. Fleishman 
explained the process and costs associated.  
 
Armando Perez owns property at 879 N. Seventh 
Street is opposed to vacation of the alley between 
N Sixth and N Seventh, running between 
Washington and Jefferson because it provides 
access to a rear garage.  
 
Deborah Glander inquired if all vacated alleys will 
have a Public Utility Easement. Mr. Fleishman 
stated that was the recommendation from staff. 
 
Council questions and discussion on the storm 
water issue raised earlier by Mr. Flowers.  
 
Additional discussion on alleys that have not 
received any public input from property owners.  
 
Mr. Fleishman provided a summary of alleys 
proposed to be vacated by staff, and the two 
additional alleys requested for vacation this 
evening. 
 
The hearing was closed at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Councilor Glidewell stated she disagrees with this 
process.  
 
Councilor Lewis spoke about the importance of 
this process and liability associated with the City 
allowing encroachment in the alleyways. 
 
Motion from Councilor Lewis, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to return to the November 2 
meeting with an ordinance finalizing the vacation 
process for the list of alleys to be vacated in the 
staff report and to include vacation of the alley 
between N. Sixth and & N. Seventh, from E. 
Virginia to E. Washington and the alley between N. 
Birch and N. Alder, south of Ida Street, which will 
require an additional public hearing. Motion 
passed 4:1 (Glidewell). 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 4 of 5 
October 6, 2015 

Unfinished Business  None. 
 
 

New Business 
Ordinance No. 988, Amending Stayton Municipal Code Title 5.12 
Relating to the Location of Marijuana Facilities 
a. Staff Report – Chief Rich Sebens 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b. Council Deliberation 
 
 
 
 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
Ordinance No. 989, “Drug Paraphernalia” 
a. Staff Report – Chief Rich Sebens 

 
 

b. Council Deliberation 
 

 
c. Council Decision 

 
 

 
 

Sidewalk Maintenance Program 
a. Presentation – Lance Ludwick 

 
 
 
Chief Sebens reviewed the report included in the 
Council packet. He also offered a possible solution 
to restrict the sale of recreational marijuana by 
limiting distance from a park or “brick and mortar” 
daycare centers. However, if this is something 
Council wants to move forward with, he would 
have to look further into the legalities.  
 
Discussion of the “grandfathering clause” for 
marijuana facilities and what the Council can and 
can’t do when it comes to regulating recreational 
marijuana. 
 
The Council deferred action on Ordinance No. 988 
to the October 19, 2015 meeting. 
 
 
Chief Sebens briefly reviewed the staff report 
included in the Council packet.  
 
Council discussion of why these changes to the 
Municipal Code are necessary.  
 
Motion from Councilor Lewis, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to approve Ordinance No. 989 as 
presented and declaring an emergency. Motion 
passed 5:0. 
 
 
Mr. Ludwick gave a presentation on the City’s 
Sidewalk Maintenance Program. Council discussion 
of tree roots lifting sidewalks and the City’s 
approved tree list. 

Staff / Commission Reports None. 
 

Presentations / Comments From the Public Gerry Flowers spoke briefly about sidewalk issues 
and potential solutions. 

Business from the City Administrator Mr. Campbell announced that the next Main 
Street Meeting has been scheduled for 
Wednesday, October 21, at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Stayton Community Center.  

Business from the Mayor None.  
 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 5 of 5 
October 6, 2015 

Business from the Council Councilor Quigley inquired about upcoming events 
at the Stayton Public Library. Ms. Bryk provided an 
update of events happening this week at the 
Library. 
 

Future Agenda Items – October 19, 2015 
a. Community Grants 
b. SCTC Franchise Agreement Extension 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 19TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2015, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
Date:      Transcribed by:       
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
OLCC Application  Page 1 of 2  
October 19, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   October 19, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Liquor License-“New Outlet” Application – Limited On-

Premises Sales 
  
 

ISSUE: 
Moxieberry Inc. has submitted an application to the City and to OLCC to obtain a liquor sales 
license.  This application is for a “New Outlet” for “Limited On-Premises Sales” Liquor License 
Application.  Ms. Teri Mesa is the president of Moxieberry Inc.  Ms. Mesa and her husband 
Jonathon (John) Mesa own and operate Moxieberry, which is a coffee shop, café, gift shop 
combination business. The license application is to sell beer and wine along with the regular 
food menu. They do not intend to have alcoholic beverage on tap. They will only be selling 
bottled beverage products. 
 
NEW BUSINESS NAME: 
    Moxieberry, Inc. 
    429 N 3rd Ave. 
    Stayton, Oregon   97383 
    B:  (503) 767-4438 
     
OWNERS:    Teri Mesa 
    12064 Golf Ln SE 
    Sublimity, OR 97385 
     
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the recommendation of the Stayton Police Department to forward this application to the 
Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) with a recommendation for approval. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The location is zoned for this type of business which is a “central core mixed use commercial 
zone”.  The business is and has been a restaurant and they are adding an alcohol beverage 
license which does not change the zoning status.  
 
 
 



 
OLCC Application  Page 2 of 2  
October 19, 2015 

FACTS AND FINDINGS: 
I have conducted a background investigation of the business and applicants.  I have found 
nothing out of the ordinary. 
 
Based on the application and background investigation, I find no legal authority to 
recommend denial of this application. 
 
MOTION(S): 
 
No Motions are needed as this is a consent agenda item. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
 
 



 

Alley Vacation Public Hearing  Page 1 of 2  
November 2, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 2, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Vacation of Alleys between N Alder and N Birch, south of W Ida 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on the City-initiated vacation of the alleyway 
between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, south of W Ida Street.  This alley was added to the list of alleys 
to be considered for vacation at the request of one of the property owners adjacent to the alley.  
Because it was not included on the list of alleys originally proposed for vacation, this public hearing is 
required. 

ANALYSIS 

This alley was dedicated to the public as part of the Ottomar Luttich Addition, platted in 1892.  The 
alley extends from W Ida St on the north to the south boundary of the Ottomar Luttich Addition and 
what is shown on the plat for that subdivision as the D.E. Stayton Fish Pond, long since dried up. 

There are two tax parcels on the east side of the alley, both in common ownership, and each with a 
single family dwelling.  On the west side of the alley, there are four tax parcels.  Two are only about 
1,000 square feet each and are owned by the same people who own the property on the east side of 
the alley.  The other two parcels on the west side of the alley are in common ownership and have one 
home on them. 

The owner of the parcels on the east side appeared at the City Council’s October 5 public hearing and 
requested this alley be vacated.  Attached to this report is a letter from the other owner.  This person 
also owns the parcel on the east side of the southern terminus of the alley. 

There is a ¾-inch water line in the alley and Pacific Power reports a facility in the alley, both of which 
are services to 248 W Ida St.  There is also a shed associated with 248 W Ida St that has been 
constructed in the alley. 

Also attached to this report are letters from two owners adjacent to the alley between N Second and 
N Third, running from E Virginia to E Washington, requesting the City Council vacate this alley as well.  
This alley was not included in the original list of alleys to be vacated because the presence of a city 
water line, electric facilities, natural gas facilities, and telecommunication facilities.  Vacation of this 
alley would require an additional public hearing. 



 

Alley Vacation Public Hearing  Page 2 of 2  
November 2, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the alley between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, south of W Ida Street be vacated 
and that the City retain a public utility easement. 

Ordinance 990 will be presented to the City Council as a separate agenda item.  This alley has been 
included in the Ordinance. 













 
Ordinance No. 988, Marijuana Facilities  Page 1 of 3  
October 19, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Rich Sebens, Chief of Police,  

Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: November 5, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 988, “Marijuana Facilities”  

ISSUE: 

**Update** 

At the October 5th City Council meeting staff presented Ordinance No. 988 to amend Title 5.12. 
During the meeting, questions were raised as to whether a City could have different “Time, 
Manner, and Place” regulations for a medical marijuana dispensary versus a recreational 
facility.  The second question was whether a City could propose “facility type” limitations on a 
“grandfathered” facility. 

As staff has presented at previous meetings, there are two marijuana facilities that have been 
“grandfathered” into the City.   

Section 59 of Measure 91 recognizes that cities have the right to adopt reasonable time, place 
and manner regulations for recreational marijuana facilities.  These must relate to the 
“nuisance aspects” of recreational sales facilities.  In enacting any restrictive regulations, cities 
must make specific findings that the target facilities would create adverse effects for the city 
and the public.  A City must be very careful with any regulation related to limiting marijuana 
facilities, and the “specific findings” required by Measure 91 must be supported by substantial 
factual evidence.  Because of the legalized nature of recreational sales, the burden of evidence 
is relatively high, and the need for highly clarified supportive findings are necessary.  Particular 
attention must be paid to “Health and Welfare” criteria.  Because of the similarities between 
alcohol and marijuana, the League of Oregon Cities recommends that time, place and manner 
restrictions currently in effect for retail liquor stores be carefully considered when developing 
such regulations for retail marijuana sales.  In other words the regulations for each should 
closely match in order to be assured of compliance with the allowable siting restriction under 
Measure 91. 

If the City chooses to limit “Recreational Facilities” completely or regulate them in such a way 
that they could not operate at all, the City would need to propose sending a “recreational 
facility ban” to the voters.  As stated previously, the City would then be exempt from marijuana 



 
Ordinance No. 988, Marijuana Facilities  Page 2 of 3  
October 19, 2015 

tax revenue. As part of this question, Legal Counsel also researched if “Recreational Facilities” 
are grandfathered along with “Medical Facilities”, as the two were created under separate 
laws.  Legal Counsel believes they too are grandfathered along with Medical Facilities. 

Second, staff researched the particular location on Martin Drive in relation to a “Day Care”.  
Staff has found that the law is very clear on “Day Care” businesses not being included in the 
definition of a school. Given the clear mandate in the state law regarding Day Care facilities, It 
would be legally challenging to create a distance buffer from a “Day Care” to a marijuana 
facility.  It is highly unlikely that substantial evidence could be produced on this topic that could 
lead to specific findings of adverse effects relating to children in a Day Care facility. 

Third, staff looked at whether the City could impose regulations to set the distance a facility 
must be from a city park.  In order to set a regulation around parks, there would need to be 
evidence showing that marijuana facilities will have an adverse “Health and Welfare” effect on 
the park and its users.  At this point there is limited data to show this either way for marijuana 
facilities.   When there is limited data, a city can look at “like” businesses.  There is a liquor 
store located in the same proximity as the area in question. The City could use data from it.  
Based on the liquor store statistics, in the last 5 years we have had 10 incidents related to the 
Liquor store. Of those ten, four were alcohol related.  This is a relatively low number in 
comparison to “bars” in the community.  In comparison, Stayton Police responded 70 times to 
one of the local bars in the community. Of the 70 incidents, 44 were alcohol related.  None of 
these incidents had a direct effect on a City park.  Without substantial evidence of adverse 
effects, and the inability to write specific findings, placing additional restrictions with regard to 
parks would again be legally challenging. 

Finally, we looked at distance from the parks.  The closest park is Santiam Station.  This park is 
outside of 200 feet from the marijuana facility.  200 feet is the buffer distance the City has set 
for marijuana facilities from a residence.  If the City were to place a 200 foot buffer from the 
parks it would not limit any of the locations for marijuana facilities.   If the City chose to extend 
this distance out to meet the 1000 foot criteria used for schools it would eliminate virtually all 
possible locations in the community for a marijuana facility.  This would not be considered a 
“reasonable” regulation as required by state statute.  

 

**Initial Report** 

At the September 21, 2015 Stayton City Council meeting, Ordinance No. 987, “Marijuana 
Facilities” was approved. At the time of approval, staff recognized there would be future 
changes to Title 5 as this is very new legislation for the State. 

In reviewing changes made by Ordinance No. 987, an additional change was identified in 
relation to the 200 foot distance from a marijuana facility requirement. Ordinance No. 987 
established the requirement that a marijuana facility be 200 feet from a residence, as measured 
from the property lines of both properties. An analysis of properties where retail sales are 
permitted by zoning, resulted in only two possible locations within the City that are more than 



 
Ordinance No. 988, Marijuana Facilities  Page 3 of 3  
October 19, 2015 

1,000 feet from a school and 200 feet from a residence. One of these locations is a vacant 
parcel. There is concern the restrictions in Ordinance No. 987 are not reasonable.   

Therefore, Ordinance No. 988 is drafted  to measure the separation distance between a facility 
and a residence from that portion of the building occupied by the facility and the residence 
itself, not between property lines.  Also, Ordinance No. 988 would allow a facility within 200 
feet of a residence if occupancy of the residence is age restricted to only persons older than 55. 

These changes would increase the options available to a potential marijuana facility to 11 
buildings.  The 1,000-foot separation distance between facilities remains unchanged, assuring 
there will be no more than 4 facilities within the City. 

Staff also felt there was a need to clarify who the facilities could sell to, to include anyone with 
a medical marijuana card versus just those over the age of 21.  

 

OPTION AND MOTIONS 

1. Approve Ordinance No. 988 as presented. 

Move to approve Ordinance No. 988 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their 
vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 
988 is enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 988 will be brought before the Council for a 
second consideration at the November 2, 2015 meeting. 

2. Approve Ordinance No. 988 with modifications.  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 988 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance  

Ordinance No. 988 will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at the 
November 2, 2015 meeting. 

3. Retain the Code unchanged. 

No motion is necessary. 



 

Ordinance No. 988                     Page 1 of 2 
Amending Title 5.12, Location of Marijuana Facilities 

ORDINANCE NO. 988 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 5, 

CHAPTER 5.12 RELATING TO THE LOCATION OF MARIJUANA FACILITIES AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, on September 21, the Stayton City Council enacted Ordinance No. 987 establishing 
a licensing system for and restricting the permissible locations of marijuana facilities; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the location restrictions on marijuana facilities 
enacted in Ordinance No. 987 are not reasonable, in that they would permit facilities at only two 
locations within the City, neither of which are likely to be available to a facility; 

WHEREAS, there are two proposed medical marijuana dispensaries in the City of Stayton that 
have received permits from the Oregon Health Authority; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton desires to have reasonable time, place and manner restrictions 
on facilities that protect the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Stayton and limits 
access to marijuana products by children but allows for the location of facilities within the City; 
and, 

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

SECTION 1.  Stayton Municipal Code Section 5.12.040 is amended to read as follows:  
(additions are underlined; deletions are crossed out): 

5.12.040 LOCATION AND HOURS OF OPERATION 

A. No marijuana facility may be located within 1,000 feet of another marijuana 
facility,  Distances between facilities will be calculated from the closest point 
with respect to property lot lines. 

B. No marijuana facility may be located within  and 200 feet from any residence. 
Distances from the facility to a residence will be measured from that portion of 
the building occupied by the facility and the residence.  However, if the residence 
is an apartment within a Commercial, Industrial or Downtown zone, as described 
in Chapter 17.16, and is part of an existing mixed-use structure such as a second 
story apartment above a business, or is part of a residential development 
occupancy of which is restricted to persons 55 or older, the facility is not required 
to be more than 200 feet from the residence. 

C. Marijuana facilities may not be located within 1,000 feet of a public or private 
school. A school is one described by ORS, OLCC, and OHA.  Distances from the 
facility to a school will be calculated from the closest point with respect to 
property lot lines.  However, if a school moves to within a 1,000 feet of a pre-
existing marijuana facility, the facility is not required to move unless the facility 
changes ownership. 

D. Distances from the facility will be calculated from the closest point with respect 
to property lot lines. 



 

Ordinance No. 988                     Page 2 of 2 
Amending Title 5.12, Location of Marijuana Facilities 

E. The hours of operation for a Medical Marijuana Dispensary or Retail Marijuana 
Facility may not be outside of 9am to 7pm. 

SECTION 2.  Stayton Municipal Code Section 5.12.060.D is amended to read as follows:  
(additions are underlined; deletions are crossed out): 

D. No marijuana products may be sold or given to an individual knowing the product will be 
sold or given to a person who does not have a Oregon Medical Marijuana Program card 
or is under the age of 21 or used in violation of State law. 

SECTION 3.  Upon enactment by the Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signature, the 
Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after enactment. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2ND DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed:       By:_______________________________________ 
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

  ATTEST      

Signed:    By:         
   Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

___________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 
 



City of Stayton -- Properties Zoned for Retail Use, More than 1,000 from a School
and More than 200 Feet from a Residence Showing 200 Ft and 1,000 Buffers Around Parks



City of Stayton -- Properties Zoned for Retail Use, More than 1,000 from a School



City of Stayton -- Properties Zoned for Retail Use, More than 1,000 from a School
and More than 200 Feet from a Residence



 

Alley Vacation Public Hearing  Page 1 of 2  
November 2, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 2, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance 990 Vacating of Alleys 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the enactment of Ordinance 990, finalizing the process of the City-
initiated vacation of the alleyways throughout the City. 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council adopted Resolution 934 in July initiating the process of vacating 15 of the 55 
alleyways within the City.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed vacations 
at the end of August.  Following their public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended that 8 
alleys be vacated and that three alleys be partially vacated. 

The City Council held a public hearing on October 5.  At that time staff recommended that alleys not 
be partially vacated unless the adjacent properties owners came to an agreement on which portion 
should be vacated.  Enclosed with this staff report is a letter signed by four of the five owners of 
property adjacent to the alley between N Sixth Ave and N Seventh Ave, running from E Washington St 
to E Jefferson.  They have all agreed to the vacation of the southern half of the alley.  This would 
preserve access to the rear garage at 879 N Seventh.  As presented to the City Council, Ordinance 990 
vacates the south half of this alley and retains a public utility easement. 

At the October 5 public hearing, testimony from the public requested that the alley on the south side 
of W Ida St, between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave also be vacated.  A public hearing on this alley was 
held earlier this evening.  As drafted, Ordinance 990 vacates this alley and retains a public utility 
easement. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Ordinance 990 be enacted as presented. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 990 

Move to approve Ordinance No 990 as presented. 



 

Alley Vacation Public Hearing  Page 2 of 2  
November 2, 2015 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall 
be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 990 is enacted and 
will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 990 will be brought before the Council for a second 
consideration at the November 16, 2015 meeting. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 990 with the following changes … and direct staff to incorporate 
these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City Council for a 
second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall 
be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 990 will 
be brought before the Council for a second consideration at its November 16, 2015 meeting. 

3. Retain all alleyways  

No motion is necessary. 

 



 

  
Ordinance 990 Vacation of Various Alleys Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 990 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING VARIOUS ALLEYWAYS IN THE CITY OF 
STAYTON, MARION COUNTY, OREGON AND ESTABLISHING AND 

RETAINING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS 
 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 271.130(1) provides that the governing body of a city may initiate proceedings to 
vacate an alley;  

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2015 the Stayton City Council adopted Resolution 934 Initiating the 
Vacation of Various Alleys in the City of Stayton and naming fifteen alleys for which vacation was 
proposed;  

WHEREAS, on August 31 2015, following public notice, the Stayton Planning Commission did 
conduct a public hearing on the proposed alley vacations;  

WHEREAS, there was testimony at the Planning Commission public hearing requesting that the 
alley between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, running from W Ida St to W High St also be vacated;  

WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended that eight alleys 
be vacated and that three alleys be partially vacated;  

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2015 the Stayton City Council did conduct a public hearing concerning 
the proposed vacations at which public testimony and the written record were received and 
considered;  

WHEREAS, there was testimony at the City Council’s public hearing requesting that the alley 
between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, running from south from W Ida St also be vacated;  

WHEREAS, on November 2, 2015, the Stayton City did conduct a public hearing concerning the 
proposed vacation of the alley between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, running south from W Ida 
St; 

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearings the Stayton City Council determined that it 
was in the public interest to vacate the following alleys 

 Alley between N Second and N Third, running from Fir to Cedar 
 Alley between N Third and N Fourth, running from Burnett to Virginia 
 Alley between N Fourth and N Fifth, running south from Marion 
 Alley between N Fourth and N Fifth, running from Robidoux to Hollister 
 Alley between N Fourth and N Fifth, running from Jefferson to Santiam 
 Alley between N Sixth and N Seventh, running from Virginia to Washington 
 Alley between N First and N Alder, running north from High 
 Alley between N Alder and N Birch, running from Ida to High  
 Alley between N Alder and N Birch, running south from Ida 
 Alley between N Alder and N Cherry, running north from High 
 Alley between S Douglas and S Evergreen, running south from Water; and 

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearings the Stayton City Council determined that it 
was in the public interest to partially vacate the alley between N Sixth and N Seventh, running from 
Washington to Jefferson 

WHEREAS, the public interest will be prejudiced if the vacation of these alleys is allowed without 



 

  
Ordinance 990 Vacation of Various Alleys Page 2 of 4 

the retention of a public utility easement. 

NOW, THEREFORE the Stayton City Council hereby ordains as follows: 

Section 1. The alley between N Second Ave and N Third Ave, running from E Fir St to E Cedar 
St, located in block 1 of the Pines Addition as recorded in Marion County Deed Records Book of 
Town Plats Volume 13, Page 29, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility easement. 

Section 2. The alley between N Third Ave and N Fourth Ave, running from E Burnett St to E 
Virginia St, located in block 6 of Thomas’ Addition to Stayton as recorded in Marion County Deed 
Records Book of Town Plats Volume 1, Page 51, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility 
easement. 

Section 3. The alley between N Fourth Ave and N Fifth Ave, running south from E Marion St, 
located in block 1 of U Whitney’s Addition to the Town of Stayton as recorded in Marion County 
Deed Records Book of Town Plats Volume 1, Page 54, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility 
easement. 

Section 4. The alley between N Fourth Ave and N Fifth Ave, running from E Robidoux St to E 
Hollister St, located in block 2 of Geo. Hollister’s Addition to Stayton as recorded in Marion 
County Deed Records Book of Town Plats Volume 3, Page 7, is hereby vacated subject to a public 
utility easement. 

Section 5. The alley between N Fourth Ave and N Fifth Ave, running from E Jefferson St to E 
Santiam St, located in block 3 of Hollister’s Addition to the Town Stayton as recorded in Marion 
County Deed Records Book of Town Plats Volume 2, Page 51, is hereby vacated subject to a public 
utility easement. 

Section 6. The alley between N Sixth Ave and N Seventh Ave, running from E Virginia St to E 
Washington St, located in block 12 of U Whitney’s Addition to the Town of Stayton as recorded in 
Marion County Deed Records Book of Town Plats Volume 1, Page 54, is hereby vacated subject to 
a public utility easement. 

Section 7. The portion of the alley between N Sixth Ave and N Seventh Ave, running north 
from E Washington St, located between lots 7 and 8 and lots 1 and 2 in block 13 of U Whitney’s 
Addition to the Town of Stayton as recorded in Marion County Deed Records Book of Town Plats 
Volume 1, Page 54, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility easement. 

Section 8. The alley between N First Ave and N Alder Ave, running north from W High St, 
located in block 1 of the Ottomar Luttich Addition to Stayton as recorded in Marion County Deed 
Records Book of Town Plats Volume 3, Page 36, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility 
easement. 

Section 9. The alley between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, running from W Ida St to W High 
St, located in block 5 of the Ottomar Luttich Addition to Stayton as recorded in Marion County 
Deed Records Book of Town Plats Volume 3, Page 36, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility 
easement. 

Section 10. The alley between N Alder Ave and N Birch Ave, running south from W Ida St, 
located in block 4 of the Ottomar Luttich Addition to Stayton as recorded in Marion County Deed 
Records Book of Town Plats Volume 3, Page 36, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility 
easement. 

Section 11. The alley between N Alder Ave and N Cherry Ave, running north from W High St, 
located in block 6 of the Ottomar Luttich Addition to Stayton as recorded in Marion County Deed 



 

  
Ordinance 990 Vacation of Various Alleys Page 3 of 4 

Records Book of Town Plats Volume 3, Page 36, is hereby vacated subject to a public utility 
easement. 

Section 12. The alley between S Douglas Ave and S Evergreen Ave, running south from W 
Water St, located between block 1 and block 2 of Burson’s Addition to Stayton as recorded in 
Marion County Deed Records Book of Town Plats Volume 4, Page 23, is hereby vacated subject to 
a public utility easement. 

Section 13. It is in the public interest that the alley vacations, acted upon by this Ordinance, are 
conditioned by the retention of public utility easements (PUE) over the areas to be vacated. 
 

The Public Utility Easements are retained by the City to be used for: all municipal purposes, 
including but not limited to sewer, water and storm drainage, and for the use and benefit of 
public utility companies furnishing electric power, natural gas, communication, and cable 
television; to construct and maintain public utilities; and for unrestricted ingress and egress 
on the property described above for the purpose of installing, repairing, testing, maintaining, 
and replacing the utilities and maintaining the utilities and related facilities. 
 
The PUE described above shall be non-exclusive except that City of Stayton and such public 
utilities shall have the exclusive right to construct, install, maintain and operate the utilities, 
their equipment and all related facilities above and below ground within the PUE including 
the right of access to such facilities and the right to require the removal of any obstructions 
including trees and vegetation that may be placed within the PUE, at property owner’s 
expense.  
 
The PUE shall include the exclusive right, privilege, and authority to the City of Stayton and 
such public utilities to excavate for, and to construct, build, install, lay, patrol, operate, 
maintain, repair, replace, and remove underground sanitary sewer, storm drain, or water 
pipelines; electric power, transmission, and supply cables; natural gas pipelines; and cable 
television and communication lines with all appurtenances incident thereto or necessary 
therewith, including aboveground valve boxes, fire hydrants, or manholes, in, under, and 
across the said premises, and together with the right of the City of Stayton and utility owners 
to place, excavate, replace, repair, install, maintain, operate, inspect, add to the number of 
and relocate such utilities and necessary appurtenances, and make excavations therefore 
from time to time, in, under, and through the above-described premises within said 
Easement, and to cut and remove from said easement any trees and other obstructions which 
may endanger the safety or interfere with the use of said utilities, or appurtenances attached 
to or connected therewith; and the right of ingress and egress to and over said 
above-described premises at any and all times for the above purposes; and for doing 
anything necessary, useful, or convenient for the enjoyment of the Easement hereby 
retained.  

 
The City of Stayton may use the surface of the PUE provided such use does not interfere 
with property owner’s rights described in this PUE. The property owners shall not permit 
any other use or utilities to be located in the PUE without the written consent of the City of 
Stayton. Approved uses within the PUE shall consist of, but are not limited to, landscaping, 
paved driveway or parking areas, trails, paths, sidewalks or other uses that will not affect the 
ability of the City or utilities to access the PUE. Prohibited uses shall consist of, but are not 
limited to, permanent structures, buildings, or any other obstruction, excavation or alteration 



 

  
Ordinance 990 Vacation of Various Alleys Page 4 of 4 

of the PUE. The PUE shall perpetually encumber the property. No additional earth fill or 
embankment shall be placed within the PUE, nor over any utility fixture therein without a 
specific written agreement between affected utility owners that may be beneficiaries of the 
PUE, and property owners, their successors, or assigns.  Should such specific agreement be 
anticipated, the City of Stayton will set forth the conditions under which such fill or 
embankment may be placed, including a stipulation that all risks of damage to the utilities 
shall be assumed by property owner, their successors, or assigns. 
 
The City of Stayton and utilities shall be responsible for the maintenance of the utilities and 
related facilities located within the PUE. Property owners shall be responsible for landscape 
and surface maintenance within the PUE. The City of Stayton’s use of the PUE shall not 
unreasonably interfere with property owners’ use of their property.  
 
The City of Stayton, and each utility owner beneficiary of the PUE, upon the initial 
installation, and upon each and every occasion that the same be repaired, replaced, renewed, 
added to, or removed, shall restore the premises, and any improvements disturbed by the 
work, to as good condition as it was prior to any such installation or work, including the 
restoration of any topsoil and lawn. 

Section 14. In accordance with ORS 271.140, title to area within the vacated alleys enumerated 
above shall attach to the lands bordering on such area in equal portions. 

Section 15. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption by the Stayton City Council 
and the Mayor’s signing and shall be recorded in the Marion County Deed Records. 
 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 2nd day of November, 2015 
 
 CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:_______________, 2015 By:_____________________________________ 
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
 
Date:_______________, 2015 Attest: _____________________________________ 
  Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 ____________________________ 
 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

 

























































 
Ordinance No. 986 – Amending Ordinance No. 957, SCTC Franchise Agreement Page 1 of 1  
November 2, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
 
DATE:   November 2, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 986 – Amending Ordinance No. 974, SCTC 

Franchise Agreement 
  
     
ISSUE 
 
The Stayton Cooperative Telephone Company (SCTC) Franchise agreement is due to expire. 
Work on the new ordinance has not proceeded forward as initially planned. Due to the changes 
in the Telecommunications industry the City of Stayton would like to explore the option of 
adopting a Master Communications Ordinance. Before the City explores a long-term franchise 
agreement, it would be best if current legal issues currently being litigated in the courts reach a 
reasonable resolution.  
 
I have spoken to Curt Thornton from SCTC and they are happy to extend their current 
agreement.  Mr. Thornton and SCTC have been very helpful and understanding in working with 
the City in this matter. 
 
MOTION(S) 
 

1) Motion to approve Ordinance No. 986, as presented. 
 

2) Motion to approve Ordinance No. 986 with the following modification(s) ____________. 
 

3) Deny approval. No action needed. 
 



 
Ordinance No. 986  Page 1 of 2 

Amending Ordinance No. 974, SCTC Franchise Agreement 

ORDINANCE NO. 986  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 974 (STAYTON COOPERATIVE 
TELEPHONE COMPANY “SCTC” FRANCHISE) SECTION 4.16.030, EXTENDING 
THE TERM OF  THE FRANCHISE UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2016. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton (“Grantor”) is authorized by state statutes and its charter to 
grant non-exclusive franchises to persons desiring to occupy rights-of-way within the City;  
 
WHEREAS, Stayton Cooperative Telephone Company (“Grantee”) owns, maintains, and 
operates a telecommunications system in rights-of-way in the City and provides 
telecommunications services under grant of a previous franchise by the City (Ordinance No. 
957);  
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee now wishes to utilize its existing telecommunications system to provide 
cable services, and the provision of such services requires separate authorization from the City in 
the form of a cable franchise under applicable federal law;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton needs additional time to update Section 4.16; and,  
 
WHEREAS, SCTC has agreed to extend the franchise term by one (1) additional year (Exhibit 
A, “Acceptance”). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Stayton City Council does ordain as follows:  
 
 Stayton City Ordinance No. 974, Section 4.16.030, TERM, is amended to delete 
“…twelve years (12)…” to be substituted by “…until December 31, 2016…” 

 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2ND DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 
 
 
      CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Signed ________, 2015   By:         
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
  
 
Signed ________, 2015   Attest:                 
 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

 



 
Ordinance No. 986  Page 2 of 2 

Amending Ordinance No. 974, SCTC Franchise Agreement 

Exhibit A 
Acceptance 

 
TO: Keith Campbell 
City Administrator 
City of Stayton 
362 N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 
 
This is to advise the City of Stayton, Oregon (“City”) that Stayton Cooperative Telephone 
Company (“Grantee”) hereby accepts the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 986, passed by 
the Stayton City Council on November 2, 2015 (the Franchise) granting a Franchise authorizing 
the provision of cable services for a limited term.  The Grantee agrees to abide by each and every 
term of the Franchise. 
 
 
BY ________________________________ 
 
TITLE       
 
SIGNATURE       
 
DATE       
 



 
Ordinance No. 991, Amending Ordinance No. 876, Wave Broadband Franchise Agreement Page 1 of 1  
November 2, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
 
DATE:   November 2, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 991 – Amending Ordinance No. 876, Wave 

Franchise Agreement 
  
     
ISSUE 
 
The Wave Broadband (formally Uvision) franchise agreement has expired. The City’s internal 
records indicated an extension was completed when Uvision became Wave Broadband.  After 
working with Wave Broadband and reviewing internal records, neither party was able to find 
any documentation of a formal extension with the change.  
 
Due to the changes in the Telecommunications industry, the City of Stayton would like to 
explore the option of adopting a Master Communications Ordinance. Before the City explores a 
long-term franchise agreement, it would be best if current legal issues before the courts are 
settled.  
 
I have spoken to Jim Penney from Wave Broadband and they are happy to extend their current 
agreement. Mr. Penney and Wave Broadband have been very helpful and understanding in 
working with the City in this matter. 
 
MOTION(S) 
 

1) Motion to approve Ordinance No. 991, as presented. 
 

2) Motion to approve Ordinance No. 991 with the following modification(s) ____________. 
 

3) Deny approval. No action needed. 
 



 
Ordinance No. 991  Page 1 of 2 

Amending Ordinance No. 876, Wave Broadband Franchise Agreement 

ORDINANCE NO. 991 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 876 (WAVE BROADBAND 
FORMERLY UVISION) SECTION 15 DURATION, RENEWAL AND 
RENEGOTIATION EXTENDING THE TERM OF FRANCHISE UNTIL DECEMBER 
31, 2016 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton (“Grantor”) is authorized by state statutes and its charter to 
grant non-exclusive franchises to persons desiring to occupy rights-of-way within the City;  
 
WHEREAS, Wave Broadband formally Uvision (“Grantee”), owns, maintains, and operates a 
telecommunications system in rights-of-way in the City and provides telecommunications 
services under grant of a previous franchise by the City;  
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee now wishes to utilize its existing telecommunications system to provide 
cable services, and the provision of such services requires separate authorization from the City in 
the form of a cable franchise under applicable federal law; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton needs additional time to update Ordinance No. 876, Section 15; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, Wave Broadband has agreed to extend the term of the franchise to December 31, 
2016 (see Exhibit A “Acceptance”). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Stayton City Council does ordain as follows:  
 
 Stayton City Ordinance No. 876, Duration, Renewal and Renegotiations, is amended to 
delete “…for ten years)…”to be substituted by “…until December  
31, 2016)…” 

 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2ND DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 
 
      CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Signed ________, 2015   By:         
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
  
 
Signed ________, 2015   Attest:                  
 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 
Ordinance No. 991  Page 2 of 2 

Amending Ordinance No. 876, Wave Broadband Franchise Agreement 

Exhibit A 
Acceptance 

 
TO: Keith Campbell 
City Administrator 
City of Stayton 
362 N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 
 
This is to advise the City of Stayton, Oregon (“City”) that Wave Broadband (“Grantee”) hereby 
accepts the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 991, passed by the Stayton City Council on 
November 2, 2015 (the Franchise) granting a Franchise authorizing the provision of cable 
services for a limited term.  The Grantee agrees to abide by each and every term of the Franchise. 
 
 
BY ________________________________ 
 
TITLE       
 
SIGNATURE       
 
DATE       
 





















 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
October 19, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   October 19, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Report 
  
     
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of September 2015. 
  
 September 

2015 
Year to Date 

2015 
September 

2014 
Year to Date 

2014 
     
Police Activity 963 7100 981 6662 
Investigated Incidents 352 2998 406 2229 
Citations/Warning 95/235 846/1544 128/191  632/738 
Traffic Accidents 7 72 5 63 
Juvenile Abuse 3 25 4 33 
Arrests 38 384 48 598 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 301.31 3332.71 202.5 2064.5 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 4 29 0 203 
Peer Court Referrals: 2 42 3 35 
     
 











 

Public Works Monthly Operating Report    Page 1 
October 19th, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:      Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:    Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:     October 19th, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Works Monthly Operating Report for September 2015 
     
KEY ACTIVITIES  STATUS 
 
 WWTP Facility  Effluent flows: 26.33 million gallons were treated during September. The 

highest flow was 1.23 million gallons on September 16th and the  lowest 
flow was 0.65 million gallons on September 21st. The average  flow was 
0.88 million gallons. Total rainfall for September was 1.58 inches.  

 
 WTP    Highest production day was 6,621,000 gallons on September 5th, 2015. 
 
 Water System  Replaced seven meters. Replaced two radios. Replaced a meter stop for 

1721  N  Third  Avenue.  Located  valves  on  Third  Avenue.  Replaced  a 
hydrant valve box at Seventh and Marion. 
 

 Streets     Swept  240  curb  miles  and  removed  approximately  90  cubic  yards  of 
material for September. 
 

  Parks    Volunteers: Community Service – 0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours, Life skills 
High School Students –51 hours. Total = 51 hours. 

 
 Building Permits     

            Permit Type Issued  SDC’s Paid
New Single Family Dwelling 0  0 
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other  3  0 

Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other  6  0 

Electrical  1  0 

Mechanical   2  0 

Plumbing  0  0 

TOTAL 12  0 
One (1) Residential SDC = $10,357.00 + $670.00 for Mill Creek SDC + 
Storm Water SDC $1861.00 or $2669.00 



 

Planning and Development Monthly Report, September 2015 Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 
 
 DATE: October 20, 2015 
 
 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for September, 2015 
  
 

Enforcement Activity Highlights 

No Activity 

Planning & Development Activity Summary 

Reviewed applications for three new single family homes 

Prepared grant application for DLCD Technical Assistance Grant 

Reviewed modification for W Water St partitioning 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 
 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Katinka Bryk- Library Director 
 
DATE:   October 19, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  September Library report 
  
 
The library hosted a popular annual art exhibit featuring work based on the best-selling novel 
All the Light We Cannot See by Anthony Doerr. The exhibit travels to libraries around the region 
and the work is created by artists involved with Lake Oswego Reads. 
 
Youth Services was busy with the new Art Club, which meets the second Monday of the month. 
Back by popular demand is Lego Club on the third Thursday of each month. Teens were happy 
with their first ever makerspace program where they made ‘squishy circuits’, learning about 
conductivity with play dough (one salty, one sweet). Makerspace is the fourth Wednesday of 
each month. 
 
Trivia Night hosted by the library at Ugo’s Pizzeria continues to be popular. The next one is 
Tuesday October 20th. 
 
The Friends of the Stayton Library hosted their seventh anniversary sale at the bookstore. As 
always, thank you do much friends for your continued support of the library. 
 
The adult book club, Tea Time for Book Lovers, read The Monsters of Templeton by Lauren 
Groff.  It is a collage of secrets and ghosts that is disguisedly set in the author’s hometown of 
Cooperstown, NY.  
 
Miss Lisa, the Early Literacy Outreach Storyteller, completed planning her schedule with the 
schools and day cares. She continued her work with the middle schoolers book club at the 
subsidized housing complex. 
 
Upcoming events to mark on your calendars: 

• October 20- Trivia Night at Ugo’s Pizza 7pm 
• October 22 - Crazy 8s Author Event- eight authors get eight minutes each to talk about 

their writing and their inspirations 7 pm 
• October 28- Tea Time for Book Lovers Book Club  5:30 pm 

 



TOTAL CHECKOUTS 13,247 11,532 9,894 122,298 34,673

Self check out 4,841 4,263 3,437 20,821 12,541

Library2Go (ebooks +) 845 728 685 6,658 2,258

Non-resident cards             $780.00 $1,217.00 $419.00 $7,002.50 $2,416 

Fines: overdue & lost books $826.06 $994.00 $683.00 $12,303.09 $2,503 

Room fees                        $1,944.00 $55.00 $115.00 $4,235.00 $2,114 

TOTAL $23,540.59 $7,033.06

In-Person, by phone and computer 
help

598 449 548 5,967 1,595

NEW PATRON CARDS 126 86 120 1,220 332

INTERNET USE 1,421 1,295 1,023 16,312 3,739

Children & adults at storytime 840 205 345 6,627 1,390

Teens 46 57 31 751 134

Adults 101 38 16 733 155

Outreach 834 523 27 4,183 1,384

TOTAL 12,294 3,063

MEETING ROOM ATTENDANCE 1,089 479 580 10,676 2,148

PATRON VISITS 8,085 7,018 8,500 85,386 23,603

VOLUNTEER HOURS 263 270 176 2,157 709

OTHER CIRCULATION SERVICES

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

INCOME RECEIVED

LIBRARY PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

2015-2016 Monthly Library  Statistics

July August Sept. Oct. 2014-15 FY 2015-16 YTDMay JuneNov. Dec. March AprilJan. Feb.










